

Joint Committee for the North of England Open Air Museum

Date Friday 12 November 2010

Time 11.00 am

Venue Collections Study Room, Regional Resource Centre, Beamish Museum, Beamish

Business

Part A

- 1. Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 September 2010 (Pages 1 4)
- Museum Update Report of Museum Director (Pages 5 10)
- Retirement of Treasurer Report of Secretary (Pages 11 12)
- Cycle of Meetings 2011 Report of Secretary (Pages 13 -14)
- **5.** Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.
- **6.** Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the discussion of items containing exempt information.

Part B

Items during which it is considered the meeting is not likely to be open to the public (consideration of exempt or confidential information).

- 7. Business and Operational Improvement Plan Capital Project Progress Report - Report of Museum Director (Pages 15 - 22)
- **8.** Prioritisation of Capital Projects in 2011/12 and 2012/13 Report of Museum Director (Pages 23 28)
- **9.** Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration

Colette Longbottom Secretary to the Joint Committe

County Hall Durham 4 November 2010

To: The Members of the Joint Committee

Councillors J Bailey, J Blakey, D Boyes, C Carr, D Farry, P Gittins, S Iveson, C Marshall, D Marshall, P May, A Naylor, J Shuttleworth, L Thomson, D Stoker, R Todd, J Wilkinson, J Wilson and A Wright (Durham County Council)

Councillors Norman Callender (Gateshead MBC), Bob Goldsworthy (Gateshead MBC), Linda Green (Gateshead MBC), Shirley Mortimer (North Tyneside MBC), Tracey Dixon (South Tyneside MBC), Alan Kerr (North Tyneside MBC), Nancy Maxwell (South Tyneside MBC), Richard Bell (Sunderland City Council), David Errington (Sunderland City Council), Thomas Foster (Sunderland City Council), John Kelly (Sunderland City Council), Dennis Richardson (Sunderland City Council), James B Scott (Sunderland City Council), John Scott (Sunderland City Council), Mel Speding (Sunderland City Council), Peter Walker (Sunderland City Council) and Denny Wilson (Sunderland City Council)

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting) Beamish Development Trust - Sarah Stewart, Simon Gray and Edna Hunter

Friends - Alan Ashburner and Malcolm Dix

JOINT COMMITTEE FOR THE NORTH OF ENGLAND OPEN-AIR MUSEUM

At a Meeting of the Joint Committee for the North of England Open-Air Museum held in the Collections Study Room, Regional Resource Centre, Beamish Museum on Friday 10 September 2010 at 10.30 a.m.

PRESENT:

Councillor D Marshall in the Chair

Members of the Joint Committee

Councillors Shuttleworth, Stoker, L Thomson, Todd and Wilkinson (Durham County Council) Callender, Green and B Goldsworthy (Gateshead MBC) Mortimer (North Tyneside MBC) Gibson (South Tyneside MBC) and R Bell, Errington, Kelly, Martin, Richardson, Walker and Wilson (Sunderland City Council)

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting)

Friends – Mr A Ashburner and Mr M Dix *Beamish Development Trust* – Mrs Hunter

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bailey, Blakey, Boyes, Carr, Farry, Iveson, C Marshall, May, Naylor, Wilson and Wright (Durham County Council), Gibson (South Tyneside MBC) Richardson, Walker and Wilson (Sunderland City Council) and Mrs Stewart (Beamish Development Trust)

A1 Minutes

The minutes of the meetings held on 7 May 2010 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

A2 Audited Statement of Accounts 2009/10

The Joint Committee considered joint reports of the Treasurer and Museum Director regarding:

- (i) Letter of Representation
- (ii) Audit Commission Annual Governance Report 2009/10
- (iii) Statement of Accounts 2009/10

(for copies see file of Minutes).

The Treasurer informed Members that all issues raised have been addressed to the auditor's satisfaction.

Resolved:

- (i) That the letter of representation be approved.
- (ii) That the contents of the Audit Commission Annual Governance Report for 2009/10 be noted.
- (iii) That the Statement of Accounts for 2009/10 be approved.

A3 Progress Report

The Joint Committee received a report from the Museum Director giving an update on Museum business (for copy see file of Minutes).

Results continued to be pleasing and ahead of budget. The 4 day steam event had been very popular and gave a good start to the September period. Income from catering continued to excel and retail performance was on budget.

The Museum Director then provided progress on the Business and Operational Improvement Plan which covered the following projects and included revisions to the cost plan in some cases:-

- Fairground
- Tea Rooms
- Entrance Building
- Fish and Chip Shop
- Rowley Station
- Photographers Studio
- Town Bakery

In addition members received a presentation about the development of:-

Eston Church – although the future of the Church depends on funding it is necessary to prepare the site and sort/palletise the stones salvaged from the derelict building before the winter period to minimise damage.

Hetton Band Hall – this red brick derelict building has been offered to the Museum and can be dismantled and brought back to the Museum for $\pm 45,000$. It is proposed to erect in the small field at the Colliery Bank and would replace previous proposals to construct a Navvy Mission Hall Building.

Members were updated on the activities of fundraising for the Museum including information on successful and outstanding funding bids.

A tour of the site would be included on November's agenda.

Resolved:-

- (i) That the changes and variations to projects in the Business and Operational Improvement Plan Capital Programme summarised in Section 2.3 of the report be noted.
- (ii) That the Executive Summary detailed in Section 2.5 of the report be noted.
- (iii) That the current cost plan and funding profile detailed in Section 2.6 of the report be noted.
- (iv) That the fundraising report and the work of the Fundraising Officer, supported by the Beamish Development Trust be noted.

A4 Development of an Ice Skating Rink

The Joint Committee considered a report of the Museum Director about the potential to develop a real Ice Skating Rink at Beamish over the Winter period 2010 (for copy see file of Minutes).

The rink would be built in the Pit Village at a total cost of ± 94 , 000. Members welcomed this proposal and felt it would be a welcome addition to the Museum.

Resolved:-

 That to proceed with the development of an Ice Skating Rink with total costs of £94,000 funded from the Capital Development Reserve be approved.

A5 Presentation of Overseas Visits

The Museum Director informed Members that a number of visits to open air Museums overseas had been carried out by the Management Team to learn and develop new ideas and skills used.

Richard Evans – the Museum Director, Rhiannon Hyles – Head of Engagement, Jim Rees – Special Projects Manager and Simon Wooley – Head of Learning and Access gave detailed presentations to members on their observations made at:-Sovereign Hill, Australia Williamsburg, USA Susannah Place, Australia Jamtli, Sweden Skansen, Sweden

Their observations included how to engage with the visitor, how to develop retail, how to use local people and local history, how to bring money into the Museum and the Region through accommodation, transport, catering and retail, how to develop tours of the site and potential out of hours opening.

Members thanked the Management team for their presentations and hoped that some of the ideas gained could be developed and introduced at Beamish in the future.



Joint Committee of Beamish, the North of England Open Air Museum 12th November 2010

Museum Update - Report of Museum Director

1. Performance for the 9 month period 1st February to 31st October 2010

	Actual YTD	Original Budget	Previous YTD
	2010/11	YTD 2010/11	2009/10
Visitor numbers	384,804	298,000	344,212
Variance (%)		29%	12%
Income (excluding grants)	£4,992,657	£4,326,293	£4,743,656
Variance (%)		15%	5%

- 1.1 The Museum's performance has continued to be excellent during the autumn period. Visitor numbers are 29% ahead of budget forecast and 12% up on the same period in 2009. The Museum is on track to welcome more than 415,000 visitors this year.
- 1.2 A revenue budget review has been completed for Beamish Museum Ltd for the period 1st February to 30th September 2010. The review forecasts that the Museum will achieve an operating surplus in excess of in the financial year to 31st January 2011, in excess of £700,000, as a result of the increase in visitor numbers.
- 1.3 The Museum management team have been analysing the visitor trends and considering the reasons for the growth in visitor numbers in 2010. A report is being prepared which will include evaluation from site surveys and results from comparable attractions and museums across the country. Initial results appear to show that the 2010 season has been 'patchy'. Some operators such as the Welsh Highland Railway are reporting a good year with 5 10% growth. Many sites however are reporting a decline in visitor numbers this year, following on from a relatively successful season in 2009.
- 1.4 Beamish's performance has been boosted by the success of the Beamish Unlimited scheme, which now has around 125,000 members. The success of the scheme has resulted in an increase in repeat visitors to events and seasonal activities. There has also been an increase in UK holidaymakers visiting the Museum from outside the region. Beamish welcomed 78,761 visitors in August 2010 against a budget forecast of 66,000 and a total of 71,165 in 2009. Visit County Durham has at the same time reported a 16% increase in overnight stays in the county.
- 1.5 Major events continue to successfully drive footfall during the shoulder months. 7,187 people attended the Agricultural Show from 16 19 September. A further 13,092 visitors

attended the Great North Steam Fair from 2 – 5 September, a remarkable result since it represents a 107% increase on the previous year's event.

- 1.6 A total of 41,629 visitors came to Beamish during the month of October. This is an increase of 8% on October 2009 and 19% ahead of the budget forecast. Visitor numbers were boosted by October half term activities and two very popular 'Halloween' evening events, which attracted 3765 people.
- 1.7 The Museum is now preparing for the Christmas at Beamish event from 20th November to 2nd January. This year the weekend offer during the Christmas season has been expanded to feature the Edwardian Town Christmas with shopping in the Co-op; a Victorian Farm Christmas at the Home Farm with home cooking; an Edwardian Pit Village Christmas with ice skating; and finally the fireside Grotto at Pockerley with the Steam Galloper ride. Two evening events will remain focussed on the Edwardian Town, but will also include 12th Night at Pockerley Old Hall, real ice skating and the Grotto this year. Tickets are now on sale online and at the Museum.

2. Admission Policy for 2011/12

- 2.1 The Board of Beamish Museum Ltd has approved a change to the admission policy to take place with effect from 1st April 2011. A review of the 2010 admission policy was completed as part of a wider review of progress delivering the Business and Operational Improvement Plan at the Museum. It was informed by consultation with staff as well as visits to comparative sites.
- 2.2 The Museum currently operates a seasonal pricing structure with three levels of ticket prices during the Summer season (April October); Winter season (early November and January March); and Christmas season (mid-November December). Some of the period areas at the Museum are closed during Winter and Christmas seasons, and the admission fee to the Museum is reduced as a result during these periods. Beamish is also only open on 5 days per week during the Winter and Christmas seasons from November to March, closing on Mondays and Fridays.
- 2.3 Under the new admission policy from 1st April 2011, it is proposed to continue to expand the experience that Beamish offers its visitors year-round. A 12 month calendar of activities and events at the Museum is planned from 2011, which will allow the Museum to open more of its period areas at weekends throughout the year. From 1st April 2011 the Museum's year-round weekend offer will include the Edwardian Town, Pit Village, Victorian Home Farm and Pockerley Old Hall.
- 2.4 As a result of the changes it is proposed to sell all visitors a 'Beamish Unlimited' annual ticket at weekends throughout the year from 1st April 2010. The price of the ticket will remain unchanged and they will remain valid for an unlimited number of visits for 12 months from the date of purchase. Day tickets will be discontinued, apart from on midweek days (Tuesdays-Thursdays) from November to March, when a 50% discount on admission will be offered to reflect the fact that the Home Farm and Pockerley Old Hall areas of the site are closed. The Museum will also continue to close on Mondays and Fridays during the winter period, from November to March.

2.5 Ticket prices for the Museum have been held at 2010 prices.

	Mid-Week			
	All Year	Winter Discount	Groups and	
	Unlimited Ticket	(Nov – March)	Special Tickets	
Adult	£16.00	£8.00		
60+	£13.00	£6.50		
Child	£10.00	£5.00		
Student	£13.00	£6.50		
Family 2+2	£46.00	N/A		
Family 1+2	£32.00	N/A		
Group Adult		£6.00	£11.00	
Group 60+		£6.00	£10.00	
Group Child		£6.00	£6.00	
Education		£5.00	£6.00	
Special		£5.00	£5.00	
Corporate Adult			£7.00	
Corporate Child			£5.00	
Evening Adult			£12.00	
Evening Child			£12.00	
0				

- 2.6 Admission ticket prices to the Museum have not been increased, in order to continue to encourage as many visitors as possible to visit Beamish year-round and ensure that the experience is as affordable as possible. The Museum has not increased its admission fee for four consecutive years and numbers have increased as visitors have appreciated the value of the Beamish Unlimited ticket. Although the day admission price will increase at weekends over the winter period from 1st April 2011, this is a result of the Museum operating the Beamish Unlimited ticket system year-round and expanding its offer out of the main Summer season, opening more areas of the site.
- 2.7 The Museum has prepared a financial forecast forecasting the number of visitors it expects to welcome in 2010/11. A prudent approach has been taken in preparing the estimates. Although Beamish expects to welcome more than 415,000 visitors in 2010/11, the forecast for 2011/12 has been set at 366,000. This estimate includes 284,416 'first time' paying visitors and 81,584 repeat visitors. It is estimated that 366,000 visitors in 2011/12 would generate more than £3 million in admissions income. Changing the seasonal pricing structure and selling the Beamish Unlimited ticket all year round is forecast to increase income from Gift Aid from £395,000 per annum to over £0.5 million.

3. MLA/Renaissance funding

- 3.1 As members will be aware, the Department of Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) has announced that the Museum Libraries and Archives Council (MLA) will cease to exist after 31st March 2012. The MLA currently funds the Renaissance programme for museums in the regions and Beamish is at risk of losing circa £400,000 of revenue funding per annum from 31st March 2011, should the government announce the closure of the programme.
- 3.2 An announcement from the DCMS regarding the future of Renaissance is expected in the next few weeks. The MLA is currently advising that there will be a transitional fund for Renaissance in 2011/12 financial year, with an estimated 20% reduction in funding on 2010/11 levels. Over the 2011/12 financial tear the MLA is intending to dismantle the regional museum 'Hubs' and establish a smaller number of 'core museums' around the country. They are also proposing to phase out Renaissance funding and replace this with 'Challenge Funding' for regional museums like Beamish that have been members of the Museum Hubs.
- 3.3 The Board of Beamish Museum Ltd will consider revenue budget estimates covering the next two years of operation at their meeting on 12th November 2010. It is currently assumed that Renaissance funding will be cut by 20% from 1st April 2011
- 3.4 Compared with many other museums faced with similar reductions in external funding, Beamish is in a relatively robust position. It is estimated that Renaissance funding will represent around 7% of the Museum's turnover of circa £6 million in 2010/11. Beamish's annual revenue expenditure of circa £4.5 million is supported in the main by income from visitors to the Museum.
- 3.5 Measures have already been put in place to help manage the potential impact of a decline in Renaissance funding. For the past year Beamish has been working with its partners including the Beamish Development Trust, and actively seeking alternative sources of external funding for projects and services that have been supported by Renaissance in the past. Fundraising has initially focussed on support for the Museum's Learning and Access team, who work with schools and community groups across the region. An application to enable Beamish to further develop its outstanding work in this area for 3 years from 1st April 2011 will be considered by the Heritage Lottery Fund in December this year.

4. Long term business planning

- 4.1 The Museum's management team have begun to consider some of the key strategic issues that will underpin the long term business and development plan.
- 4.2 The topics and themes currently being discussed in terms of the strategic plan are:

Admission & ticketing systems Income from secondary spend (during the day) Making the most of our assets: evening use Making the most of our assets: new businesses Making the most of our assets: accommodation Time periods & collections development Transport systems Methods of how we tell the stories & engaging with visitors Learning & Community Engagement Skills development Audience Development & Marketing Making the most of our resources: environmental issues Business Models, HR & Governance Issues Risk Management

4.3 Consultation events with the BML Board, Joint Committee and all key stakeholders including local authority partners are now being planned for early 2011.

5. Priorities for the next period

- Continue to monitor performance weekly to maximise income and year end surplus
- Complete a review of progress delivering the Business and Operational Improvement Plan in 2010
- Prepare forward plans for the entrance building and catering operations
- Continue to monitor developments with the North East Museums Hub and prepare a transitional business plan for 2011/12, for MLA approval.
- Finalise design and fix costs for entrance building and tea room kitchen extension building package, including the introductory exhibition.
- Complete retail fit out works.
- Complete preparations for Christmas at Beamish.
- Continue development of long term business and development plans.
- Continue to manage construction projects underway (tea room ramp/fish & chip shop).
- Organise consultation events at Beamish and around the region for long term business planning.
- Consult with staff on new health and safety policy
- Update Museum's Risk Register including revised capital programme.

Richard Evans, Director 2nd November 2010



BEAMISH JOINT COMMITTEE – 12th November 2010

RETIREMENT OF TREASURER

REPORT OF SECRETARY

The Joint Committee is advised that the Treasurer, George Blyth, will retire in January 2011 after 40 years of service with Sunderland City Council. He has been associated with Beamish Museum since Sunderland took over lead authority responsibility for financial services from the former Cleveland County Council and has latterly been performing the role of Treasurer to the Beamish Joint Committee as well as Company Financial Officer to Beamish Museum Limited and Beamish Museum Trading Limited, and Treasurer to Beamish Development Trust.

Following a senior management restructure at Sunderland City Council in January 2010, a new post of Executive Director of Commercial and Corporate Services was created and the posts of Director of Financial Resources and Chief Solicitor were deleted. The Chief Solicitor retired on 30th September 2010 and George Blyth will retire as Director of Financial Resources in January 2011.

Mr Malcolm Page, currently the Deputy Chief Executive of One North East, has been appointed to the new post of Executive Director of Commercial and Corporate Services with Sunderland City Council and will take up his appointment on 4th January 2011. It is recommended therefore that the Board appoint Malcolm Page as Treasurer to the Beamish Museum Joint Committee.

> Colette Longbottom Secretary to the Joint Committee



JOINT COMMITTEE – 12 November 2010

CYCLE OF MEETINGS 2011

Report of Secretary

In accordance with normal practice, I have consulted the Constituent Authorities on the cycle of meetings of the Joint Committee for the year 2011.

It would seem the following cycle of meetings would be acceptable, with all meetings commencing at 10.30 a.m.

Friday 14 January 2011 Friday 11 March 2011 Friday 6 May 2011 Friday 24 June 2011 (Accounts) Friday 8 July 2011 (Annual Meeting) Friday 9 September 2011 Friday 11 November 2011

It would of course be within the terms of the Joint Committee's constitution for the Chairman to call a meeting at any time and to do so on the request of six members.

In accordance with the wishes of members, I would propose that all meetings are held at the Museum.

I recommend that the cycle of meetings be approved.

C Longbottom Secretary to the Joint Committee

County Hall Durham

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Document is Restricted